
           

FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA

Tuesday, June 9, 2020
8:30 AM

Teleconference Dial-in Number: (714) 671-3685
Participant Code: 130-326-44

Direct Dial Extension: 1113

MEMBERS:
ALTERNATE:  

Mayor Marty Simonoff and Council Member Cecilia Hupp
Council Member Christine Marick

This meeting is being conducted consistent with Governor Newsom’s Executive Order
N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, regarding the COVID-19 pandemic.  The Finance
Committee Meeting will be held on June 9, 2020 at 8:30 AM via a teleconference call and
the public is welcome to participate. The Dial-in Number is (714) 671-3685 and the
Participant Code is 130-326-44. The agenda packet can be viewed on the City of Brea
website at  https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/509/Meeting-Agendas-Minutes.   Hard copies of the
agenda  packet  are  available via USPS with proper notice by calling (714) 990-7676.

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Finance Committee after
distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the third floor lobby
of the Civic & Cultural Center at 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, CA 92821 during normal
business hours. Such documents may also be available on the City’s website subject to
staff’s ability to post documents before the meeting. 

             
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL
 

1. Matters from the Audience
 
CONSENT
 

2.   Approval of Action Minutes for May 26, 2020 Meeting
 

Attachments
05-26-2020 Minutes

 
DISCUSSION
 

3.   Professional Services Agreement with HF&H Consultants, LLC for Solid Waste SB
1383 Contracting Assistance in the Amount Not-to-Exceed $30,000

NOTE: This agenda is subject to amendments up to 72 hours prior to the meeting date.

Finance Committee Agenda Tuesday, June 9, 2020

https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/509/Meeting-Agendas-Minutes


 
Attachments
Exhibit A - Proposal
Agreement

 
4.   Interim Contract with Western Golf Properties for Birch Hills Golf Course and

Funding for the Maintenance, Operations and Other Related Costs
 

Attachments
Interim Contract - WGP

 
5.   Extend Landscape Maintenance Contracts for Six Months in Maintenance Districts

1, 3, 5 and 6
 

6.   Consideration of First Amendment to the Communications Facility Lease Agreement
with Los Angeles Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area (SMSA) Limited
Partnership, dba Verizon Wireless at the Downtown Parking Structure

 
Attachments
A. Communications Facility Lease
B. First Amendment to Communications Facility Lease
C. Memorandum of First Amendment to Lease

 
7.   Approve the Agreement with Fuscoe Engineering, Inc. to Provide NPDES

Stormwater Management Services 
 

Attachments
Agreement

 
8.   3rd Floor Remodel - COVID-19 Update - Verbal Update: Jenn Colacion
 

9.   Fire Services - FY 2020-21 Budget Decision Package Review - Verbal Update 
 

10. Schedule Next Meeting: June 9, 2020
 

cc: Mayor Pro Tem Steven Vargas
Council Member Glenn Parker

NOTE: This agenda is subject to amendments up to 72 hours prior to the meeting date.

Finance Committee Agenda Tuesday, June 9, 2020



Special Accommodations
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please
contact the City Clerk’s Office at (714) 990-7757. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable City staff to make
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. (28 CFR 35.102.35.104 ADA Title II)

NOTE: This agenda is subject to amendments up to 72 hours prior to the meeting date.

Finance Committee Agenda Tuesday, June 9, 2020



  2. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/09/2020

SUBJECT: Approval of Action Minutes for May 26, 2020 Meeting

Attachments
05-26-2020 Minutes 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 

8:30 AM 

Teleconference Dial-in Number: (714) 671-3685 

 Participant Code: 706-668-78 

 Direct Dial Extension: 1113 

 
This meeting was conducted consistent with Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 dated 
March 17, 2020, regarding the COVID-19 pandemic.  The Finance Committee Meeting was held 
via a teleconference call at which time the public was welcome to participate. 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
ATTENDEES: Council Member Cecilia Hupp, Council Member Christine Marick, Tony Olmos, 
Cindy Russell, Rudy Correa, Faith Madrazo and Alicia Brenner. 

 

1. Matters from the Audience – None. 

CONSENT 

2. Approval of Minutes of May 12, 2020 Meeting – Approved.  

DISCUSSION 

3. Lease Agreement between the City of Brea and the Tomlinson Families for use of 
California Domestic Water Company Stock – Recommended for City Council 
Approval. 

4. Schedule Next Meeting:  Tuesday, June 9, 2020 

Meeting adjourned: 8:31 a.m. 

 
cc:  Mayor Marty Simonoff  
      Mayor Pro Tem Steven Vargas 
      Council Member Glenn Parker 

 



  3. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/09/2020

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement with HF&H Consultants, LLC for Solid Waste
SB 1383 Contracting Assistance in the Amount Not-to-Exceed $30,000

RECOMMENDATION
Approve Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with HF&H Consultants, LLC to provide
solid waste SB 1383 contracting assistance in the amount not-to-exceed $30,000.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The City of Brea has an exclusive franchise agreement with Republic Services to provide
solid waste and recycling services in the City.  In the past three years, the City has
undertaken numerous efforts to be in compliance with current state regulations such as AB
341 (Mandatory Commercial Recycling), AB 1826 (Mandatory Organic Commercial
Recycling), and AB 1594 (Green Material used as Alternative Daily Cover).  The City’s
franchise agreement has also been amended to codify these regulations and their resulting
rate changes, where applicable. 

In September 2016, Governor Brown signed into law SB 1383, establishing methane
emissions reduction targets for short-lived climate pollutants (SLCP) in various sectors of
California’s economy.  SB 1383 establishes a target to achieve a 50 percent reduction
in statewide disposal of organic waste from 2014 levels by 2020 and a 75 percent reduction
by 2025.  The law grants CalRecycle the regulatory authority required to achieve the organic
waste disposal reduction targets by requiring residential organics recycling and establishes
an additional target that not less than 20 percent of currently disposable edible food is
recovered for human consumption by 2025.

City of Brea staff has been in communication with other Republic cities on a possible joint
effort to analyze and ultimately negotiate contract terms with Republic for implementation of
SB1383 mandates.  The cities of Garden Grove, Fullerton, Yorba Linda, Placentia and Brea
(Cities) agreed to seek a sole-source proposal from HF&H given HF&H's prior work with
North Orange County cities on AB1826.  HF&H Project Manager, Laith Ezzet, has over 30
years of experience in the waste management industry.  He has assisted over 100 public
agencies in solid waste matters, and negotiated agreements with total values in excess of $2
billion.  Mr. Ezzet is considered one of the top industry experts in his field within Southern
California, and was highly praised for his work by other North Orange County cities currently
contracting with HF&H.  Mr. Ezzet also assisted the City of Anaheim in implementing
mandatory commercial organics recycling, one of the first cities in the North Orange County
area to do so, and has served as a guest speaker at numerous events on organics
recycling.    



recycling.    

As a result, HF&H provided the attached proposal for Solid Waste SB 1383 Contracting
Assistance (Exhibit A) .  The contractor’s complete scope of work is detailed therein.  Given
the variation in the Cities' refuse contracts and their current state of organics
compliance, staff from the Cities agreed to consider moving forward on Tasks A & B only and
consider Task C once Tasks A & B have been completed. 

A summary of the contractor’s proposed scope of work is as follows: 

Task A: Contract Profile – This would involve the contractor comparing the terms of
the City’s individual franchise agreement to their inventory of the most modern
franchise agreement and developing a document detailing the findings.  It would also
include both an individual meeting with the City, as well as a group meeting of all the
cities choosing to engage the contractor to discuss a shared profile.  

Task B: Gap Analysis – Under this item, the contractor would examine what
requirements would be needed of the City in order to be in compliance with all SB 1383
provisions; then, they would identify compliance areas the City was already meeting
versus compliance areas in which the City was lacking.  It was noted by the contractor
that not everything can be delegated to the hauler, but that some functions would
require City responsibility, resources, etc.  

Task C: Contract Negotiations (For informational purposes only at this time; not
part of current contract authorization request) - The North Orange County cities
group varied in terms of some wishing to completely update their franchise agreements
versus others that simply wished to incorporate SB 1383 as an amendment to the
existing franchise agreement.  It was decided that this decision could be decided at a
later date, independent of Tasks A and B.

The final cost of this effort will be dependent on the number of cities engaging with HF&H on
the combined Tasks A & B above.  The contractor has provided a sliding scale reflecting a
discounted cost dependent on how many cities are willing to participate in this effort (Exhibit
A, page 7).  If all five Cities agree to participate, the proposed fee for Tasks A & B would be
$25,000.  At the time of this report, the cities of Garden Grove, Yorba Linda and Placentia
have stated that they plan to move forward with an agreement for Tasks A & B in June/July
either administratively or through City Council action. 

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
There is no impact to the General Fund.  Funding in the amount of $30,000 will come from
the enterprise fund for refuse-related expenditures, Fund 440 (Sanitation & Street
Sweeping).  This amount was not included in the FY 2019-20 Adopted Budget.  If approved,
Finance will include this item in the next round of quarterly budget adjustments.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Gillian Lobo, Senior Management Analyst
Concurrence: Tony Olmos, P.E., Public Works Director

Attachments
Exhibit A - Proposal 



Exhibit A - Proposal 
Agreement 



ORANGE COUNTY REPUBLIC CITIES 
Prepared by HF&H Consultants, LLC 

May 18, 2020 1 HF&H Consultants, LLC 

SCOPE OF WORK AND FEE ESTIMATE FOR 
SOLID WASTE SB 1383 CONTRACTING ASSISTANCE 

Background 

On January 30th, 2020 a group of Orange County Cities (OC Cities) met in Anaheim and 
discussed their desire to negotiate simultaneously with Republic Services (Republic) in order to 
coordinate and leverage negotiations and achieve efficiencies in the contracting process related 
to achieve Senate Bill (SB) 1383 compliance.  The OC Cities have some services in common, but 
there are many unique services and contract terms to each jurisdiction, with some having long-
term or evergreen  arrangements and others having shorter periods remaining. With respect to 
SB 1383 requirements, individual cities may make different program decisions based on in-
house resources and policy objectives that vary among agencies. 

The OC Cities now desire to enter into negotiations with Republic to modernize their contracts to 
include provisions for compliance with new and upcoming legislation, and other procedures desired to 
reach compliance with state of California mandates.  The negotiations will need to address Senate Bill 
(SB) 1383, which will require every waste generator in the City to have an organics recycling program, 
and require implementation of other new programs such as contamination monitoring, recovery of 
edible food, and enhanced reporting to CalRecycle.  

To navigate this challenge successfully, the City needs a partner for this project who: 

1. Knows SB 1383, but more importantly, knows the wide range of approaches others are
employing so that you can fully understand your options.  HF&H is preparing the model
franchise, ordinance, food recovery agreement, and purchasing policies for CalRecycle. In total,
we have worked with over 70 communities throughout California to adapt compliance to a wide
range of real world conditions. We can bring a broad range of examples for compliance and if
we need to innovate new ones, we have the connections with CalRecycle to ensure that the
solution is viable.

2. Is intimately familiar with the local infrastructure and industry. The team we would assign to
work on your project is the same team that is currently working with you and other Orange
County cities to support planning and implementation of SB 1383. Through that work, we have
developed a highly nuanced understanding of the local conditions, industry participants,
stakeholders, and potential regional synergies available. In addition, our proposed project
director (Laith Ezzet) is also the project director for ongoing financial and planning assistance for
Orange County Waste and Recycling, providing an even deeper insight into local facilities and
operations.

3. Has the processes, tools, and templates to get this planning process done quickly so that you
can transition into implementation. If the City is going to achieve its goal of getting the plan
done on an accelerated timeline, it is critical that the consultant isn’t wasting time researching
and preparing. HF&H is ready with all of the processes, tools, and templates we need to
effectively and quickly facilitate your project

Exhibit A



Orange County Republic Cities Scope of Work and Fee Estimate 
 SB 1383 Contracting Assistance 

May 18, 2020 2 HF&H Consultants, LLC 
 

Scope of Work 

The specific tasks and assignments will be determined on a mutually-agreed upon basis 
depending on the City’s needs.  The project will be performed in two phases. Phase 1 would 
include planning for negotiations with completion of a contract profile, SB 1383 gap analysis 
and assisting with negotiations for an updated solid waste agreement with Republic. The City 
can choose to complete tasks A and B independently of task C. The specific scope of work for 
Optional Phase 2 will be determined after completion of Phase 1 and may include assistance 
with updating the City’s Municipal Code, drafting new ordinances required in SB 1383, edible 
food recovery program assistance, and other SB 1383 implementation activities.  
 
PHASE 1: PLANNING AND NEGOTIATIONS 

A. Contract Profile 

This initial project phase will consist of comparing key terms in the existing agreement to those in a 
modern, state-of-the-art agreement.  Our analysis will include key terms related to the provision of 
residential, commercial and roll-off box services, rate adjustment provisions, recycling requirements, 
regulatory compliance with AB 341, AB 1826, and SB 1382, performance standards, reporting 
requirements, indemnifications, complimentary services provided at no additional charge, and other key 
contract requirements. 

We will prepare a written work product and meet once with City staff to review it.  We will subsequently 
update the analysis based on the meeting with City staff.  
 
Deliverable for Part A 

Our final work product will be a matrix comparing the 
key contract terms and services provided in the City to 
industry standards based on our experience. 
 
B. SB 1383 Compliance Gap Analysis 

Task 1.  Engagement Initiation 

HF&H will initiate the engagement by conducting a 
meeting with the City to confirm the needs and desires 
of the City with respect to SB 1383 compliance 
approaches. This will ensure that recommendations and 
options developed align with the City’s overall desired 
strategy for achieving compliance.  For example, if the 
City wishes to comply with legislation at the lowest rates 
possible, the recommended programs may look significantly different than a jurisdiction who would like 
to be on the forefront of redefining the state of the industry and developing new environmental 
programs. 



Orange County Republic Cities Scope of Work and Fee Estimate 
 SB 1383 Contracting Assistance 

May 18, 2020 3 HF&H Consultants, LLC 
 

Task 2.  Request for Information 
HF&H will prepare a request for information for data necessary to conduct the analysis. HF&H will 
facilitate a conference call with the City to discuss the request for information and agree on timelines for 
delivery of that information, along with HF&H’s work products dependent on it.   The RFI will include, 
but not be limited to: 

• Franchise agreement with Republic 
• Electronic Annual Reports 
• Municipal code sections related to solid waste 
• Purchasing policy 
• City Organization Chart 
• Tonnage reports submitted by the waste hauler 
• Customer subscription levels (to be provided by waste hauler) 
• City facility solid waste service levels 
• Large events and venues 
• Non-profits and third parties providing food recovery service 

Task 3.  Community Programs Review 
The City will receive an analysis of the current organics collection programs for all regulatory 
requirements (including processing, food recovery, education, and outreach and reporting) and an 
assessment of their adequacy to support compliance with SB 1383 requirements.  Furthermore, the City 
will benefit from our proven SB 1383 analysis tools, which have been reviewed by CalRecycle, including 
our compliance checklists and responsibility matrix.  These proven tools efficiently assess compliance 
with SB 1383, identify gaps in programs, synthesize the data, and inform decisions about who to assign 
responsibility for the various compliance requirements.  These tools have been used in more than 30 
communities for current and continual compliance analysis and are helpful working documents for use 
in the Implementation Record required by SB 1383.  If there are questions or concerns surrounding a 
program’s compliance, HF&H will obtain clarification from CalRecycle’s SB 1383 Manager, or other 
CalRecycle executives as necessary. The City will benefit from our strong working relationship with 
CalRecycle and our deep knowledge of compliance issues, which has been developed across multiple 
engagements with CalRecycle, including our current project of assisting CalRecycle with the 
development of tools for local government implementation of SB 1383.  

Task 4.  Internal Operations Review 
While SB 1383 is a shared-responsibility bill providing opportunity for delegation of requirements to 
franchisees, there are numerous requirements that could not be reasonably delegated, such as 
procurement of recovered content paper, issuing fines, and amending of ordinances. HF&H will evaluate 
the City’s internal operations in order to identify gaps in performance or service compared to SB 1383 
requirements. This analysis will be primarily focused on requirements for service, purchasing, education, 
outreach, and reporting. 

Task 5.  Baseline Analysis Report and Meeting 
Based on the information gathered and work performed in Subtasks 1 through 4, HF&H will draft a 
presentation and facilitate a meeting to articulate the extent to which current programs, internal 
operations, and infrastructure comply.  HF&H will discuss the pros and cons of various compliance 



Orange County Republic Cities Scope of Work and Fee Estimate 
 SB 1383 Contracting Assistance 

May 18, 2020 4 HF&H Consultants, LLC 
 

pathways, and seek City direction on which programs they would like to consider.  We will document 
the discussion and direction provided in annotated meeting notes. 

Deliverable for Part B: 

The City will receive a baseline conditions report in PowerPoint and a three hour meeting with HF&H to 
review current compliance status and potential solutions to be considered in subsequent tasks. 

C. Contract Negotiations with Republic 

Task 1.  Initiate Project and Brief City Officials 

HF&H staff will prepare for and facilitate a kick-off meeting with City staff to confirm the 
contracting objectives, and project schedule, and confirm the approach to the contract 
negotiations.  The result of the meeting will be a document confirming the contracting strategy 
and project schedule. 
 
If requested, HF&H will also prepare for and attend one meeting to provide a briefing to the 
City Management or other City Officials based on direction from City staff given at the kick-off 
meeting. 
 
Task 2:  Develop New Contract Provisions and Prepare Updated Agreement 
or Contract Amendment 

There have been many changes to solid waste regulations and technologies since the previous 
solid waste agreement was approved.  For example, mandatory commercial organics recycling 
regulations were phased in with AB 1826, and will be expanded under new regulations being 
finalized under Senate Bill 1383.  New facilities to process organics waste are being developed 
or proposed throughout the Southern California region.  As a result of these and other 
regulatory and industry developments, there are many areas of the existing Agreement that will 
need to be updated. 
 
HF&H has been instrumental in defining the “state of the industry” throughout California, and 
we will assist the City in development of an updated franchise agreement that reflects modern 
best practices. HF&H will work closely with the City to identify and adapt the service 
specifications to industry trends and developments that have occurred since the current 
Agreement was developed.  HF&H has an extensive library of franchise agreements throughout 
California to draw upon for examples of performance standards, service options, diversion 
requirements, and rate adjustment methodologies for the City’s consideration. HF&H has also 
been assisting CalRecycle in preparation of a model franchise agreement that incorporates the 
requirements of SB 1383 and is familiar with the necessary documentation to strive for 
compliance. 
 
Based on the discussions and direction provided by City staff described above, we will prepare 
either an updated draft franchise agreement or contract amendment for the desired services 



Orange County Republic Cities Scope of Work and Fee Estimate 
 SB 1383 Contracting Assistance 

May 18, 2020 5 HF&H Consultants, LLC 
 

and contract terms.  City staff, including the City Attorney, will subsequently review the draft 
agreement or contract amendment, and the City will be responsible for consolidating 
comments from the City’s various reviewers into a single “redline” of the draft work product, 
which we will then use to prepare an updated draft work product.   

Task 3:  Negotiate Rates, Terms and Conditions of Desired Services 

We recommend that the draft agreement be provided to Republic documenting the City’s 
desired services and contract terms.  Republic and the City can then negotiate rates that are 
consistent with the City’s desired terms and conditions contained in the draft agreement 
developed in Task 2.  The result of Republic’s review of the agreement will likely be a series of 
points that they wish to address and proposed rates that may or may not be satisfactory.  HF&H 
will then assist in negotiating reasonable rates.  We will also work with City staff to guide the 
City through its determination of which service provider concerns are minor and which are 
valuable enough not to negotiate without a substantial offsetting gain for the City.   
 
HF&H will assist the City by scheduling the necessary negotiation meetings and conference calls 
with all relevant parties from the City and Republic, creating meeting documents, and drafting 
meeting notes based on the discussions. 
 
Task 4:  Gather and Review Hauler Operating Data 

Service statistics, such as the number of customers, container size and frequency of collection, 
can be used to determine the overall value of the contract at proposed rates.  Typically, we 
determine and compare the overall compensation to the service provider under existing rates 
and using newly renegotiated rates in order to demonstrate the true overall financial impact to 
the rate payer.  For example, a decrease in the rate for a common service level is more valuable 
than a decrease in a rate for a service that is seldom used.  With the proper data, we can 
compare the overall proposed company compensation on a similar basis with other 
jurisdictions. 
 
Task 5:  Attend City Council Meeting 

We have budgeted to attend one meeting of the City Council when the Council considers the 
new agreement for award. 
 
OPTIONAL PHASE 2: ADDITIONAL SB 1383 ASSISTANCE  

Upon completion of the Phase 1 tasks, HF&H can prepare a new scope based on City direction 
related to additional SB 1383 assistance.   These tasks may include: 

• Updating the City’s Municipal Code to reflect the negotiated terms of the new franchise 
agreement;  



Orange County Republic Cities Scope of Work and Fee Estimate 
 SB 1383 Contracting Assistance 

May 18, 2020 6 HF&H Consultants, LLC 
 

• Drafting new ordinances required under SB 1383;  
• Provide reporting assistance; 
• Development and/or review of outreach materials; 
• Edible food recovery program assistance; and, 
• Other SB 1383 implementation activities.  



Orange County Republic Cities Scope of Work and Fee Estimate 
 SB 1383 Contracting Assistance 

May 18, 2020 7 HF&H Consultants, LLC 
 

COST PROPOSAL 

We will provide the requested services based on time and materials.  The estimated base cost is 
$120,000 for Phase 1 of the project. If the City would like to complete tasks A and B before 
executing task C, the project cost would be $30,000. We have broken the budget out by sub-
project below: 
 

Work Item Total Cost 
A. Contract Profile $15,000 
B. SB 1383 Compliance Gap Analysis $15,000 

Subtotal for Tasks A and B $30,000 
C. Negotiations with Republic $90,000 

Phase 1 Total $120,000 
 
The cost per city to complete only tasks A and B would be reduced based on the number of cities that 
join the project and can be seen in the following table: 

Number of Cities 1 2 3 4 5 
Project Cost per City $30,000 $28,750 $27,500 $26,250 $25,000 

 
Similarly, the total project cost per city would be reduced based on the number of cities that join the 
project and can be seen in the following table for all three sub-projects: 
 

Number of Cities 1 2 3 4 5 
Project Cost per City $120,000 $115,000 $110,000 $105,000 $100,000 

 
Our actual costs may be higher or lower than this amount, depending on the level of support 
requested, and we will notify you in writing if a budget amendment is required.  We will bill you 
once per month based on the number of hours worked, multiplied by our hourly billing rates, 
plus out-of-pocket expenses incurred.  Payment is due within 30 days. Hourly rates through 
December 31st, 2020 are as follows and will be adjusted each January 1st by 2.5%: 
 

Position Rate 

Senior Vice President $295 

Senior Manager $265 to $275 

Senior Associate/Project Manager $179 to $249 

Associate Analyst $155 to $175 

Assistant Analyst  $139 to $149 

Administrative Staff $99 to $109 

 
Expenses will be billed as follows: 
Mileage  $0.50 per mile (or as adjusted by IRS allowance) 
Outside document reproduction/couriers/postage  Actual 



Orange County Republic Cities Scope of Work and Fee Estimate 
 SB 1383 Contracting Assistance 

May 18, 2020 8 HF&H Consultants, LLC 
 

Public conveyances and parking Actual 
All other out-of-pocket expenses Actual 

 



Orange County Republic Cities Scope of Work and Fee Estimate 
 SB 1383 Contracting Assistance 

May 18, 2020 9 HF&H Consultants, LLC 
 

SCHEDULE 

CalRecycle is finalizing rule development for SB 1383 and the final package is anticipated in June 
or July 2020.  We would start the engagement around the time the time that the rules are 
finalized, with the goal of completing the negotiations under Phase 1 by July 1, 2021, assuming 
timely agreement is reached with the waste hauler.  The City could then use the period prior to 
January 1, 2022 to update ordinances and other perform other pre-implementation activities. 
 
STAFFING 

Laith Ezzet, Senior Vice President, will be the Project Director and he will be assisted by other 
HF&H staff with the appropriate skills for the assigned tasks.  



CITY OF BREA
HF&H Workplan for SB 1383 Contracting Assistance - Phase 1

5/14/2020 14 HF&H Consultants, LLC

TASK
Sr. Vice 

President
Sr. Project 
Manager

Project 
Manager/

Senior 
Associate

Assistant 
Analyst

Total Hours/ 
Fees (1)

18                  -                     42                  8                     68 
 $          5,310  $                 -    $          8,358  $          1,160  $               14,828 

Prepare Contract Profile Expenses  $                     172 
 $               15,000 

                   16                     -                      26                    34 76 

 $          4,720  $                 -    $          5,174  $          4,930  $               14,824 
SB 1383 Compliance Gap Analysis Expenses  $                     176 

 $               15,000 

Total Tasks A and B Hours 34                  -                     68                  42                  144                       
Hourly Rates 295$              270$              199$              145$              
Total Consulting Fees for Tasks A and B 10,030$        -$               13,532$        6,090$          29,652$               
Total Tasks A and B Expenses 348$                     
Total Expenses for Tasks A and B 30,000$               

1 Initiate Project and Brief City Officials                    12                     -                      12                     -   24 
2 Develop New Contract Provisions and Prepare Updated Agreement                    24                    32                    64                      8 128 
3 Negotiate Rates, Terms and Conditions of Desired Services                    80                     -                      80                      8 168 
4 Gather and Review Hauler Operating Data                      8                     -                      36                      6 50 
5 Attend City Council Meeting

                     6                                             6                        12 

                 130                    32                  198                    22 382 
 $        38,350  $          8,640  $        39,402  $          3,190  $               89,582 

Contract Negotiations with Republic Expenses  $                     418 
 $               90,000 

Total Hours 164                32                  266                64                  526                       
Hourly Rates 295$              270$              199$              145$              
Total Fees 48,380$        8,640$          52,934$        9,280$          119,234$             
Total Expenses 766$                     
Total Fees and Expenses 120,000$             

DESCRIPTION

Total Contract Negotiations with Republic 

C. Contract Negotiations with Republic

Contract Negotiations with Republic Hours
Contract Negotiations with Republic Consulting Fees

B. SB 1383 Compliance Gap Analysis
SB 1383 Compliance Gap Analysis Hours
SB 1383 Compliance Gap Analysis Consulting Fees

A. Prepare Contract Profile
Prepare Contract Profile Hours
Prepare Contract Profile Consulting Fees

Total Prepare Contract Profile 

Total SB 1383 Compliance Gap Analysis

(1) Hours may be shifted among tasks.



1

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into this 16th day of June 2020, between the City of 

Brea, a Municipal Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “CITY”) and HF&H Consultants, LLC.

(hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT”),

A. Recitals

(i) CITY has heretofore solicited proposals pertaining to the performance of 

professional services with respect to Solid Waste SB 1383 Contracting Assistance (“Project” 

hereafter).

(ii) CONSULTANT has now submitted its proposal for the performance of such 

services, a full, true and correct copy of which proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and by 

this reference made a part hereof.

(iii) CITY desires to retain CONSULTANT to perform professional services necessary 

to render advice and assistance to CITY, CITY’s Planning Commission, City Council and staff in 

preparation of Project.

(iv) CONSULTANT represents that it is qualified to perform such services and is 

willing to perform such professional services as hereinafter defined.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed by and between CITY and CONSULTANT as follows: 

B.  Agreement

1. Definitions:  The following definitions shall apply to the following terms, except 

where the context of this Agreement otherwise requires:

(a)  Project:  The preparation of Solid Waste SB 1383 Contracting Assistance

(Task A and Task B only) described in Exhibit “A” hereto including, but not limited to, the 

preparation of maps, surveys, reports, and documents, the presentation, both oral and in writing, 

of such plans, maps, surveys, reports and documents to CITY as required and attendance at any 



2

and all work sessions, public hearings and other meetings conducted by CITY with respect to the 

project.

(b) Services:  Such professional services as are necessary to be performed by 

CONSULTANT in order to complete the Project.

(c) Completion of Project:  The date of completion of all phases of the Project, 

including any and all procedures, development plans, maps, surveys, plan documents, technical 

reports, meetings, oral presentations and attendance by CONSULTANT at public hearings 

regarding the adoption of Project as set forth in Exhibit “A” hereto.

2. CONSULTANT agrees as follows:

(a) CONSULTANT shall forthwith undertake and complete the Project in 

accordance with Exhibit “A” hereto and all in accordance with Federal, State and CITY statutes, 

regulations, ordinances and guidelines, all to the reasonable satisfaction of CITY.

(b) CONSULTANT shall supply copies of all maps, surveys, reports, plans and 

documents (hereinafter collectively referred to as “documents”) including all supplemental 

technical documents, as described in Exhibit “A” to CITY within the time specified in Exhibit 

“A”.  Copies of the documents shall be in such numbers as are required in Exhibit “A”.  CITY 

may thereafter review and forward to CONSULTANT comments regarding said documents and 

CONSULTANT shall thereafter make such revisions to said documents as are deemed necessary.  

CITY shall receive revised documents in such form and in the quantities determined necessary by 

CITY.  The time limits set forth pursuant to this Section B2(b) may be extended upon written 

approval of CITY.

(c) CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT’s sole cost and expense, secure and 

hire such other persons as may, in the opinion of CONSULTANT, be necessary to comply with 

the terms of this Agreement.  In the event any such other persons are retained by CONSULTANT, 



3

CONSULTANT hereby warrants that such persons shall be fully qualified to perform services 

required hereunder.  CONSULTANT further agrees that no subcontractor shall be retained by 

CONSULTANT except upon the prior written approval of CITY.

3. CITY agrees as follows:

(a) To pay CONSULTANT a maximum sum of thirty thousand dollars and zero 

cents ($30,000.00) for the performance of the services required hereunder, plus a contingency 

of zero ($000.00).  This sum shall cover the cost of all staff time and all other direct and indirect 

costs or fees, including the work of employees, consultants and subcontractors to 

CONSULTANT.  Payment to CONSULTANT, by CITY, shall be made in accordance with 

the schedule set forth below.  CITY must receive a written request from CONSULTANT to 

use any of the contingency amount prior to performing any work that is outside the Project 

scope as defined in Exhibit “A”.  It will be the CITY’s sole discretion to authorize the use of 

the contingency funds and the CITY must give this authorization to CONSULTANT in writing 

prior to the commencement of said work.  Any work performed outside the Project scope as 

defined in Exhibit “A” that has not received prior written approval by CITY is assumed to have 

been performed in support of said Project and included within the not-to-exceed contract 

amount.

(b) Payments to CONSULTANT shall be made by CITY in accordance with the 

invoices submitted by CONSULTANT, on a monthly basis, and such invoices shall be paid within 

a reasonable time after said invoices are received by CITY.  All charges shall be in accordance 

with CONSULTANT’s proposal either with respect to hourly rates or lump sum amounts for 

individual tasks.  Notwithstanding any provision herein or as incorporated by reference, in no event 

shall CONSULTANT, or any person claiming by or through CONSULTANT be paid an aggregate 

amount in excess of the amount set forth in Section 3 (a).



4

(c) Final payment shall be made not later than 60 days after presentation of final 

documents and acceptance thereof by CITY.

(d) Additional services:  Payments for additional services requested, in writing, by 

CITY, and not included in CONSULTANT’s proposal as set forth in Exhibit “A” hereof, shall be 

paid on a reimbursement basis in accordance with the fee schedule set forth in said Exhibit “A”.  

Charges for additional services shall be invoiced on a monthly basis and shall be paid by CITY 

within a reasonable time after said invoices are received by CITY.

4. CITY agrees to provide to CONSULTANT:

(a) Information and assistance as set forth in Exhibit “A” hereto.

(b) Photographically reproducible copies of maps and other information, if 

available, which CONSULTANT considers necessary in order to complete the Project.

(c) Such information as is generally available from CITY files applicable to the 

Project.

(d) Assistance, if necessary, in obtaining information from other governmental 

agencies and/or private parties.  However, it shall be CONSULTANT’s responsibility to make all 

initial contact with respect to the gathering of such information.

5.     Ownership of Written Product:  

(a)  Unless otherwise agreed upon in writing, all reports, documents, or other original 

written material, including any original images, photographs, video files, digital files, and/or or 

other media created or developed for the CITY by CONSULTANT in the performance of this

Agreement (collectively, “Written Product”) shall be and remain the property of CITY without 

restriction or limitation upon its use or dissemination by CITY.  All Written Product shall be 

considered to be “works made for hire”, and all Written Product and any and all intellectual 

property rights arising from their creation, including, but not limited to, all copyrights and other 

proprietary rights, shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction or limitation upon 

their use, duplication or dissemination by CITY.  CONSULTANT shall not obtain or attempt to 

obtain copyright protection as to any of the Written Product.  



5

(b)  CONSULTANT hereby assigns to CITY all ownership and any and all intellectual 

property rights to the Written Product that are not otherwise vested in the CITY pursuant to 

subsection (a), above.

(c) CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has secured all necessary licenses, 

consents or approvals to use any instrumentality, thing or component as to which any intellectual 

property right exists, including computer software, used in the rendering of the Services and the 

production of all Written Product produced under this Agreement, and that CITY has full legal 

title to and the right to reproduce the Written Product.  CONSULTANT shall defend, indemnify 

and hold CITY, and its elected officials, officers, employees, servants, attorneys, designated 

volunteers, and agents serving as independent contractors in the role of city officials, harmless 

from any loss, claim or liability in any way related to a claim that CITY’s use of any of the Written 

Product is violating federal, state or local laws, or any contractual provisions, or any laws relating 

to trade names, licenses, franchises, copyrights, patents or other means of protecting intellectual 

property rights and/or interests in product or inventions.  Consultant shall bear all costs arising 

from the use of patented, copyrighted, trade secret or trademarked documents, materials, 

equipment, devices or processes in connection with its provision of the Services and Written 

Product produced under this Agreement.  In the event the use of any of the Written Product or 

other deliverables hereunder by CITY is held to constitute an infringement and the use of any of 

the same is enjoined, CONSULTANT, at its expense, shall: (a) secure for CITY the right to 

continue using the Written Product and other deliverables by suspension of any injunction, or by 

procuring a license or licenses for CITY; or (b) modify the Written Product and other deliverables 

so that they become non-infringing while remaining in compliance with the requirements of this 

Agreement.  This covenant shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

6. Termination:  This Agreement may be terminated by CITY upon the giving of a 

written “Notice of Termination” to CONSULTANT at least fifteen (15) days prior to the date of 

termination specified in said Notice.  In the event this Agreement is so terminated, 

CONSULTANT shall be paid on a pro-rata basis with respect to the percentage of the Project 

completed as of the date of termination.  In no event, however, shall CONSULTANT receive more 

than the maximum specified in paragraph 3(a), above.  CONSULTANT shall provide to CITY any 

and all documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports, 



6

whether in draft or final form, prepared by CONSULTANT as of the date of termination.  

CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement except for cause.

7. Notices and Designated Representatives:  Any and all notices, demands, invoices 

and written communications between the parties hereto shall be addressed as set forth in this 

section 7.  The below named individuals, furthermore, shall be those persons primarily responsible 

for the performance by the parties under this Agreement:

CITY REPRESENTATIVE CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE

Tony Olmos Laith Ezzet
Public Works Director Senior Vice President
City of Brea HF&H Consultants, LLC
1 Civic Center Circle 201 North Civic Drive, Suite 230
Brea, CA 92821 Walnut Creek, CA 94596-3880

Any such notices, demands, invoices and written communications, by mail, shall be deemed to 

have been received by the addressee forty-eight (48) hours after deposit thereof in the United States 

mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed as set forth above.

8. Insurance:  The CONSULTANT shall not commence work under this contract until 

it has obtained all insurance required hereunder in a company or companies acceptable to CITY 

nor shall the CONSULTANT allow any subcontractor to commence work on its subcontract until 

all insurance required of the subcontractor has been obtained.  The CONSULTANT shall take out 

and maintain at all times during the life of this contract the following policies of insurance:

(a) Workers Compensation insurance:  Before beginning work, the 

CONSULTANT shall furnish to the CITY a certificate of insurance as proof that it has taken out 

full compensation insurance for all persons whom the CONSULTANT may employ directly or 

through subcontractors in carrying out the work specified herein, in accordance with the laws of 

the State of California.  Such insurance shall be maintained in full force and effect during the 



7

period covered by this contract.  Further, such policy of insurance shall provide that the insurer 

waives all rights of subrogation against CITY and its elected officials, officers, employees and 

agents.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, every 

contractor shall secure the payment of compensation to his employees.  CONSULTANT, by 

executing this Agreement, certifies as follows:

“I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the labor Code which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ compensation or to 
undertake self insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of work of this 
contract.”

(b) For all operations of the CONSULTANT or any subcontractor in performing 

the work provided for herein, insurance with the following minimum limits and coverage:

(1) Commercial General Liability (occurrence) - for bodily injury, death and 

property damage for products/completed operations and any and all other activities undertaken by 

the CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.

(2) Comprehensive Automobile Liability (occurrence) - for bodily injury, 

death and property damage insuring against all liability arising out of the use of any vehicle.

(3) Professional Errors and Omissions Liability (if required by the RFP) -

insuring against all liability arising out of professional errors and/or omissions, providing 

protection of at least Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) for errors and/or omissions 

(“malpractice”) of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  Such policy may be 

subject to a deductible or retention in an amount acceptable to CITY and shall further be subject 

to the provisions of subsections (2) and (6) of Section c, below.  If a “claims made” policy is 

provided, such policy shall be maintained in effect from the date of performance of work or 

services on CITY’s behalf until three (3) years after the date the work or services are accepted as 



8

completed.  Coverage for the post-completion period may be provided by renewal or replacement 

of the policy for each of the three (3) years or by a three (3) year extended reporting period 

endorsement which reinstates all limits for the extended reported period.  If any such policy and/or 

policies have a retroactive date, that date shall be no later than the date of first performance of 

work or services on behalf of CITY.  Renewal or replacement policies shall not allow for any 

advancement of such retroactive date.  Each such policy or policies shall include a standard “notice 

of circumstances” provision, and shall be subject to the requirements of subsections (1), (2), (5), 

(6), (7), and (9) of Section 8 (c).  

(5) Other required insurance, endorsements or exclusions as required by the 

Request for Proposal.

(6) The policies of insurance required in this Section 8(b) shall have no less 

than the following limits of coverage:

(i) $2,000,000 (Two Million Dollars) for bodily injury or death;

(ii) $2,000,000 (Two Million Dollars) for property damage;

(iii) The total of the limits specified in subsections (i) and (ii), 

above, where a combined single limit is provided.

(c) The policies of insurance required in subsections (1) and (2)  of Section 8(b), 

above shall:

(1) Be subject to no deductible amount unless otherwise provided, or 

approved in writing by CITY;

(2) Be issued by an insurance company approved in writing by CITY, which 

is admitted and licensed to do business in the State of California and which is rated A/VII or better 

according to the most recent A.M. Best Co. Rating Guide; 



9

(3) Name as additional insureds the CITY, its elected officials, officers, 

employees, attorneys and agents, and any other parties, including subcontractors, specified by 

CITY to be included;

(4) Specify that it acts as primary insurance and that no insurance held or 

owned by the designated additional insureds shall be called upon to cover a loss under said policy;

(5) Specify that it applies separately to each insured against whom claim is 

made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability;

(6) Contain a clause substantially in the following words:

“It is hereby understood and agreed that this policy may not be canceled nor the 
amount of coverage thereof reduced until thirty (30) days after receipt by CITY of 
written notice of such cancellation or reduction of coverage as evidenced by 
receipt of a registered letter.”

(7) Specify that any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of 

the required policy, including breaches of warranty, shall not affect the coverage required to be 

provided;

(8) Specify that the insurer waives all rights of subrogation against any of 

the named additional insureds; and

(9) Specify that any and all costs of adjusting and/or defending any claim 

against any insured, including court costs and attorneys’ fees, shall be paid in addition to and shall 

not deplete any policy limits.

(10) Otherwise be in form satisfactory to CITY.

(d) Prior to commencing performance under this Agreement, the CONSULTANT 

shall furnish the CITY with original endorsements, or copies of each required policy, effecting and 

evidencing the insurance coverage required by this Agreement.  The endorsements shall be signed 

by a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on its behalf.  All endorsements or 

policies shall be received and approved by the CITY before CONSULTANT commences 



10

performance.  If performance of this Agreement shall extend beyond one (1) year, CONSULTANT 

shall provide CITY with the required policies or endorsements evidencing renewal of the required 

policies of insurance prior to the expiration of any required policies of insurance.

9. Indemnity for Design Professional Services.  

9.1 In connection with its design professional services, CONSULTANT shall 

hold harmless and indemnify CITY, and its elected officials, officers, employees, servants, 

designated volunteers, and those CITY agents serving as independent contractors in the role of 

CITY officials (collectively, “Indemnitees”), with respect to any and all claims, demands, 

damages, liabilities, losses, costs or expenses, including reimbursement of attorneys’ fees and costs 

of defense (collectively, “Claims” hereinafter), including but not limited to Claims relating to death 

or injury to any person and injury to any property, which arise out of, pertain to, or relate to in 

whole or in part to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT or any 

of its officers, employees, subcontractors, or agents in the performance of its design professional 

services under this Agreement.  

9.2 Other Indemnities.  In connection with any and all claims, demands, 

damages, liabilities, losses, costs or expenses, including attorneys’ fees and costs of defense 

(collectively, “Damages” hereinafter) not covered by this Section 9.1, CONSULTANT shall 

defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Indemnitees with respect to any and all Damages, 

including but not limited to, Damages relating to death or injury to any person and injury to any 

property, which arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the acts or omissions of CONSULTANT or 

any of its officers, employees, subcontractors, or agents in the performance of this Agreement, 

except for such loss or damage arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY, 

as determined by final arbitration or court decision or by the agreement of the parties.  

CONSULTANT shall defend Indemnitees in any action or actions filed in connection with any 



11

such Damages with counsel of CITY’s choice, and shall pay all costs and expenses, including all 

attorneys’ fees and experts’ costs actually incurred in connection with such defense.  

CONSULTANT’s duty to defend pursuant to this Section 9.2 shall apply independent of any prior, 

concurrent or subsequent misconduct, negligent acts, errors or omissions of Indemnitees.

10. Assignment and Subcontracting:  No assignment of this Agreement or of any part 

or obligation of performance hereunder shall be made, nor shall any required performance be 

subcontracted, either in whole or in part, by CONSULTANT without the prior written consent of 

CITY.

11. Damages:  In the event that CONSULTANT fails to submit to CITY the completed 

project, together with all documents and supplemental material required hereunder, in public 

hearing form to the reasonable satisfaction of CITY, within the time set forth herein, or as may be 

extended by written consent of the parties hereto, CONSULTANT shall pay to CITY, as liquidated 

damages and not as a penalty, the sum of N/A dollars ($000.00) per day for each day 

CONSULTANT is in default, which sum represents a reasonable endeavor by the parties hereto to 

estimate a fair compensation for the foreseeable losses that might result from such a default in 

performance by CONSULTANT, and due to the difficulty which would otherwise occur in 

establishing actual damages resulting from such default, unless said default is caused by CITY or 

by acts of God, acts of the public enemy, fire, floods, epidemics, or quarantine restrictions.

12. Independent Contractor:  CONSULTANT is retained by CITY only to the extent 

set forth in this Agreement, and the CONSULTANT's relationship to the CITY is that of an 

independent contractor.  CONSULTANT shall be free to dispose of all portions of 

CONSULTANT's time and activities which CONSULTANT is not obligated to devote to the 

CITY in such a manner and to such persons, firms, or corporations as the CONSULTANT sees fit 

except as expressly provided in this Agreement. Neither the CITY nor any of its agents shall have 



12

control over the conduct of the CONSULTANT or any of the CONSULTANT's employees, except 

as set forth in this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall not have the status of an employee under 

this Agreement, or be entitled to participate in any insurance, medical care, vacation, sick leave or 

other benefits provided for CITY's officers or employees.  CONSULTANT shall have no power 

to incur any debt, obligation, or liability on behalf of CITY or otherwise act on behalf of the CITY 

as an agent.  CONSULTANT shall not, at any time, or in any manner, represent that it or any of 

its agents or employees are in any manner agents or employees of the CITY.  CONSULTANT 

agrees to pay all required taxes on amounts paid to CONSULTANT under this Agreement, and to 

indemnify and hold CITY harmless from any and all taxes, assessments, penalties, and interest 

asserted against CITY by reason of the independent contractor relationship created by this 

Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall fully comply with the workers’ compensation law regarding 

CONSULTANT and CONSULTANT’s employees.  CONSULTANT further agrees to indemnify 

and hold CITY harmless from any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with applicable workers’ 

compensation laws.  CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any fees due to 

CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due to CITY from CONSULTANT as a result 

of CONSULTANT’s failure to promptly pay to CITY any reimbursement or indemnification 

arising under this Section.

13. Governing Law and Venue:  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Venue for any legal action arising out this 

Agreement shall be the Superior Court of the County of Orange, California. 

14. Attorneys’ Fees:  In the event any legal proceeding is instituted to enforce any term 

or provision of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover attorneys’ fees, 

experts’ fees, and all other costs of litigation from the opposing party in an amount determined by 

the court to be reasonable.



13

15. Entire Agreement:  This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either 

oral or in writing, between the parties with respect to the subject matter herein.  Each party to this 

Agreement acknowledges that no representation by any party which is not embodied herein nor 

any other agreement, statement, or promise not contained in this Agreement shall be valid and 

binding.  Any modification of this Agreement shall be effective only if it is in writing signed by 

all parties.  In the event of any inconsistency between this document and Exhibit A, the provisions 

of this document shall govern over Exhibit A. 



14

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and 

year first set forth above:

CONSULTANT

(two signatures required if corporation)

CITY

Mayor

ATTEST:
City Clerk



  4. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/09/2020

SUBJECT: Interim Contract with Western Golf Properties for Birch Hills Golf Course and
Funding for Maintenance, Operations and Other Related Costs

RECOMMENDATION
Award interim contract to Western Golf Properties LLC in the amount of $825,180 for
Birch Hills Golf Course; and

1.

Include the projected revenues and expenditures for the Birch Hills Golf Course
operations for Fiscal Year 2020-21 in the Golf Course Enterprise Fund (Fund 465).

2.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
In March of 2011, City Council approved a lease agreement with Imperial Golf to operate and
maintain the 18-hole Birch Hills Golf Course. Per the agreement, the lease would become
effective when the course was transferred to the City of Brea, which occurred in October of
2019. Shortly after the golf course transferred to the City, Imperial cited concerns regarding
specific terms in their lease and requested for some concessions from the City. After
discussion, Imperial and City decided to mutually terminate their lease and City would seek a
new operator. The current lease will terminate on July 5, 2020. 

Given the short turnaround time to take over the golf course operations and look for a
permanent operator, staff is recommending that City Council approve moving forward with an
interim operation and maintenance contract for the golf course from July 1, 2020 through
December 31, 2020 while a permanent operator is selected for a longer term. Should the
selection of the permanent operator extend past December 31, 2020, the interim contract will
change to a month-to-month term until City terminates the contract.

During the interim period, the City will be operating the Birch Hills Golf Course using a
contract operator as opposed to a lease agreement. This means the City will take in all the
revenues generated (through the operator) and pay the operator a fixed fee for the
maintenance and operations of the golf course. Additionally, the City will be responsible for
other costs such as the cost of goods sold in the restaurant and pro-shop; water costs, Golf
Course Specialist position and credit card processing charges.

Contract Operator
The initial interim period is expected to be six months. During this interim period, staff will
issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) seeking a permanent operator for both the Birch Hills
and Brea Creek courses. Western Golf Properties (WGP) currently operates Birch Hills as a
sub-contractor to Imperial Golf and is currently the interim operator at Brea Creek for the City.
WGP has done a commendable job operating and maintaining both golf courses. 



WGP has done a commendable job operating and maintaining both golf courses. 

WGP provided a six month proposal for the interim operations at Birch Hills. WGP expressed
their desire to work with the City and reduced their original proposal by $21,000 over the 6
month period. The final proposed amount is $137,530 per month. In addition to the six month
term, other terms in the agreement include: 

Provide full maintenance and operation of the course;
Provide all the maintenance equipment and golf carts for the operation; and
Provide a daily accounting of all sales and provide all revenues to City

The full scope of work is available in Exhibit “A” of the agreement. Additionally, during the
interim period, WGP has committed to improve the golf course by restoring grass on the
driving range landing area by a phased slit seeding process. This phased process is
necessary to be able to recover the range balls with the additional irrigation needed to
establish the seed. The range should be green again by September 2020. Other additional
maintenance activities will continue to be directed at the weeds in the roughs along the
holes. 

During the interim period, there are other golf course related costs that are not the
responsibility of the contract operator. The following costs are estimated to be approximately
$311,068 for the six-month period: 

Cost of Goods Sold – Food and Beverage
Cost of Goods Sold - Merchandise in the Pro-shop
Credit Card Processing Fees
Irrigation water
Golf Course Specialist

Based on the information received, revenue estimates at the golf course for the six month
period are $1,240,415. Gross revenues include pre-pandemic food and beverage estimates
and could vary based on clubhouse operations going forward. 
The projected gross revenues less the contract operator cost and the other estimated costs



The projected gross revenues less the contract operator cost and the other estimated costs
are as follows:

Gross Revenues $1,240,415
Expenses: 

Contract Operations
Cost of Goods Sold
Water
Credit Card Fees
Gof Course Specialist

$825,180
$130,788
$153,000

$16,280
$11,000

Total Expenditures $1,136,248
Revenues Over Expenditures $104,167

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
The projected net revenues over expenditures from this interim operation are $104,167
which will be included in the Golf Course Operations Fund (Fund 465) for Fiscal Year
2020-21.  The lease agreement with Imperial Golf had a base rent amount of $72,000, plus a
projected $79,000 in percentage rent for an estimated total of $151,000 for the six month
period from July 1 – December 31, 2020, which would have been budgeted in the General
Fund.
 
An RFP will be issued for a permanent operator of the Birch Hills and Brea Creek Golf
Courses.  Staff recommends awarding a six month contract to Western Golf Properties for
the maintenance and operations of the Birch Hills course in the amount of $825,180.   

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:    Bill Bowlus, Public Works Superintendent
                         Faith Madrazo, Revenue & Budget Manager
Concurrence:   Tony Olmos, P.E., Public Works Director
                         Cindy Russell, Administrative Services Director

Attachments
Interim Contract - WGP 



2426626.2 1 

MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS AGREEMENT  
 

This Maintenance and Operations Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and 
entered into as of the date executed by the City Clerk and the Mayor, by and between 
Western Golf Properties LLC, a California Limited Liability Company hereinafter 
referred to as the "Contractor”, and the City of Brea, a municipal corporation, hereinafter 
referred to as "City”. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and Contractor enter this Agreement in order to set forth 
terms and conditions applicable to Contractor’s performance of golf course maintenance 
and operations services at City’s Birch Hills Golf Course as more fully described herein.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, the parties agree as follows: 

1. GENERAL SCOPE OF WORK: Contractor shall furnish all necessary 
labor, tools, materials, appliances, and equipment necessary for the performance of 
maintenance and operations services at the Birch Hills Golf Course in the City of Brea, 
as hereinafter described (collectively, the “Services”). The Services shall be performed 
in accordance with any and all applicable laws, statutes, and regulations, the Scope of 
Services attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, the general provisions, specifications and 
standards on file in the office of the Director of Public Works, and as directed by the 
Director of Public Works, for the period commencing July 6, 2020 and continuing 
through December 31, 2020. Thereafter, the parties may agree to continue the term of 
this Agreement on a month to month basis, or otherwise extend as provided herein. 

a. The City and Contractor may agree to extend the term of this 
Agreement on a month to month basis.  Should the Agreement be extended, the 
contract prices may be adjusted as provided for herein.  Any price increase will require 
approval by the City Council. 

b. At all times herein, Contractor shall possess any and all licenses 
and certifications required by law in order to lawfully perform the Services. 

c. The Contractor shall maintain complete and accurate records with 
respect to purchases, expenses, receipts and other such information relating to the 
Services, as required by the City.  The Contractor shall maintain adequate records on 
services provided in sufficient detail to permit an evaluation of the Services for not less 
than four (4) years.  All such records shall be maintained in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and shall be clearly identified and readily accessible.  At 
all times during regular business hours, the Contractor shall provide access to such 
books and records to the City Representative, and shall give the Representative 
consent and right to examine and audit such books and records and to make transcripts 
as necessary, and shall allow inspection of all work, data, documents, proceedings and 
activities related to this Agreement. 



2426626.2 2 

d. The City shall designate a representative having authority to 
respond to questions and perform administrative actions specifically authorized or 
required herein. Such representative of the City, and/or designee thereof, is referred to 
herein as “City’s Representative”.  

2. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS TO BE CONSIDERED 
COMPLEMENTARY:   

The aforesaid general provisions, specifications, and standards are incorporated 
herein by reference hereto and made a part hereof with like force and effect as if all of 
said documents were set forth in full herein.  Said documents, together with this written 
Agreement, shall constitute the contract between the parties.  This Agreement is 
intended to require complete and fully performed golf course maintenance and 
operations services, and labor, equipment or materials necessary to satisfactorily 
perform the Services properly and in accordance with the law and lawful governmental 
regulations shall be performed by the Contractor whether set out specifically in this 
Agreement or not.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions 
of this Agreement, the Scope of Work, Exhibit “A”, and/or general provisions, 
specifications, and standards, the provisions of this Agreement, then the Scope of 
Work, and lastly the general provisions, specifications, and standards, shall control. 

3. CONTRACTOR’S CUSTOMER CARE: 

The Contractor, while fulfilling the terms of this Agreement, is performing as a 
representative of City and shall provide exceptional customer care. Any negative 
contact with staff, residents/citizens, businesses, visitors or other contractors shall be 
reported by Contractor immediately to City’s Representative.  Contractor’s 
Representative and/or management and supervisory personnel shall intercede to 
resolve or mitigate the negative contact in conjunction with City staff.    

4. INSURANCE:  The Contractor shall not commence work until Contractor 
has obtained all insurance required hereunder in a company or companies acceptable 
to City nor shall the Contractor allow any subcontractor to commence work on a 
subcontract until all insurance required of the subcontractor has been obtained.  The 
Contractor shall take out and maintain at all times during the life of this contract the 
following policies of insurance: 

a. Compensation Insurance:  Before beginning work, the Contractor 
shall furnish to the Director of Public Works a certificate of insurance as proof that it has 
taken out full compensation insurance for all persons whom it may employ directly or 
through subcontractors in carrying out the work specified herein, in accordance with the 
laws of the State of California.  Such insurance shall be maintained in full force and 
effect during the period covered by this Agreement. 

Further, such policy of insurance shall provide that the insurer waives all 
rights of subrogation against City and its elected officials, officers, employees and 
agents. 



2426626.2 3 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor 
Code, every contractor shall secure the payment of compensation to its employees.  
Contractor, prior to commencing work, shall sign and file with the City a certification as 
follows: 

"I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which 
require every employer to be insured against liability for worker's 
compensation or to undertake self insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that Code, and I will comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of work of this contract." 

b. For all operations of the CONTRACTOR or any subcontractor in 
performing the work provided for herein, insurance with the following minimum limits 
and coverage: 

(1)  Commercial General Liability (occurrence) – for bodily injury, 
death and property damage for products/completed operations and any and all other 
activities undertaken by the Contractor in the performance of this Agreement. : 

(2)  Automobile Liability 

(occurrence) – for bodily injury, death and property damage insuring against all liability 
arising out of the use of any automobile. 

(3)  The policies of insurance required in this Section b shall have 
no less than the following limits of coverage: 
 

(i)  $2,000,000 (Two Million Dollars) for bodily injury or 
death; 

(ii)  $2,000,000 (Two Million Dollars) for property damage; 

(iii)  The total of the limits specified in subsections (i) and (ii), 
above, where a combined single limit is provided. 

c. Each such policy of insurance required in paragraph b shall: 

(1)  Be subject to no deductible amount unless otherwise provided, 
or approved in writing by City; 

(2)  Be issued by an insurance company approved in writing by 
City, which is admitted and licensed to do business in the State of California and which 
is rated A VII or better according to the most recent A.M. Best Co. Rating Guide; 

(3)  Name as additional insureds the City, its elected officials, 
officers, employees, attorneys and agents, and any other parties, including authorized 
subcontractors, specified by City to be included; 



2426626.2 4 

(4)  Specify that it acts as primary insurance and that no insurance 
held or owned by any of the designated additional insureds shall be called upon to 
cover a loss under said policy; 

(5)  Specify that it applies separately to each insured against whom 
claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability; 

(6)  Contain a clause substantially in the following words: 

"It is hereby understood and agreed that this policy may not be 
canceled nor the amount of coverage thereof reduced until thirty (30) 
days after receipt by City of written notice of such cancellation or 
reduction of coverage as evidenced by receipt of a registered letter 
providing notice thereof." 

(7)  Specify that any failure to comply with reporting or other 
provisions of the required policy, including breaches of warranty, shall not affect the 
coverage required to be provided; 

(8)  Specify that the insurer waives all rights of subrogation 
against all of the named additional insureds; and 

(9)  Specify that any and all costs of adjusting and/or defending 
any claim against any insured, including court costs and attorneys’ fees, shall be paid 
in addition to and shall not deplete any policy limits. The insurance obligations under 
this Agreement shall be: (a) all the insurance coverage and/or limits carried by or 
available to the Contractor; or (b) the minimum insurance coverage requirements 
and/or limits shown in this agreement; whichever is greater. Any insurance proceeds in 
excess of or broader than the minimum required coverage and/or minimum required 
limits, which are applicable to a given loss, shall be available to the City. No 
representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are 
sufficient to cover the obligations of the Contractor under this Agreement. 

(10)  Otherwise be in form satisfactory to City. 

d. Prior to commencing performance under this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall furnish the City with required certificate(s) and original endorsements, 
or copies of each required policy, effecting and evidencing the insurance coverage 
required by this Agreement. The endorsements shall be signed by a person authorized 
by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on its behalf.  All endorsements or policies shall be 
received and approved by the City before Contractor commences performance.  If 
performance of this Agreement shall extend beyond one (1) year, Contractor shall 
provide City with the required policies or endorsements evidencing renewal of the 
required policies of insurance prior to the expiration of any required policies of 
insurance. 

 



2426626.2 5 

5. LABOR CODE COMPLIANCE: Contractor acknowledges that the work 
required in performing the Services is a “public work” as defined in Labor Code Sections 
1720, et seq., and/or 1771.  At all times during the term hereof, Contractor shall comply 
with all applicable provisions of the California Labor Code including those set forth in 
Exhibit “B“ California Labor Code Compliance, attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference herein.  

6. CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY:  The City of Brea and/or its elected officials, 
officers, agents and employees shall not be answerable or accountable in any manner 
for any loss or damage arising out of Contractor’s performance of the Services; or for 
any of the materials or other things used or employed in performing the Services; or for 
injury or damage to any person or persons, including employees of the Contractor or its 
subcontractors or the public; or for damage to the site of the Services or any adjoining 
or other property from any cause whatsoever arising out of or in connection with the 
performance of the Services.  The Contractor shall be responsible for any damage or 
injury to any and all persons or property resulting from Contractor’s performance of the 
Services.  

To the maximum extent permitted by law, Contractor will indemnify, defend and 
pay reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, expenses, and hold the City, its elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers (“Indemnitees”), harmless with respect to 
any and all actions, claims, damages to persons or property, penalties, obligations, 
and/or liabilities that may be asserted or claimed by any person, firm, entity, corporation, 
political subdivision, or other organization, arising out of or in connection with the 
Services including work, operations, and/or activities of the Contractor, Contractor’s 
agents, employees, subcontractors, and/or invitees, whether or not there is concurrent 
passive or active negligence on the part of City, but excluding such actions, claims,  
penalties, obligations, or liabilities arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of any of the Indemnitees as established by agreement of the parties or final court 
decision, and in connection therewith: 

a. The Contractor will defend any action or actions filed in connection 
with any of said claims, damages, penalties, obligations, or liabilities and will pay all 
costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees incurred in connection therewith. 

b. The Contractor will promptly pay any judgment rendered against 
any of the Indemnitees or the Contractor covering such claims, damages, penalties, 
obligations and liabilities arising out of or in connection with the Services work, 
operations or activities of the Contractor hereunder, and the Contractor agrees to save 
and hold the Indemnitees harmless therefrom. 

c. In the event any of the Indemnitees is made a party to any action or 
proceeding filed or prosecuted against the Contractor for damages or other claims 
arising out of or in connection with the work, operation, or activities of the Contractor 
hereunder, the Contractor agrees to pay any and all costs and expenses incurred by 
any of the Indemnitees in such action or proceeding together with reasonable attorneys’ 
fees. 



2426626.2 6 

 d. So much of the money due to the Contractor under and by virtue of 
this Agreement as shall be considered necessary by City may be retained by City until 
disposition has been made of such actions or claims for damage as aforesaid. 

 
7. NON-DISCRIMINATION:  No discrimination shall be made in the 

employment of persons upon public works because of the race, color, or religion of such 
persons, and every contractor for public works violating this section is subject to all the 
penalties imposed for a violation of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1 of the Labor Code in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 1735 of said Code. 

 
8. CONTRACT PRICE AND PAYMENT: As full and complete compensation 

for Contractor’s satisfactory performance of the Services, Contractor shall be paid the 
total, not to exceed amount of $137,530.00 (One Hundred Thirty Seven Thousand, 
Five Hundred and Thirty Dollars) per month. Contractor shall submit monthly, detailed 
invoices describing all time spent performing the Services, including a detailed 
description thereof, for the previous month. City shall pay all undisputed invoices within 
fifteen (15) days of invoice receipt. City and Contractor shall attempt to resolve any 
disputed invoices promptly and in good faith.   
 
Contractor will enter the City’s merchant number into the point of sale system to capture 
credit card transactions.  Daily receipts excluding holidays, weekends and closed 
Fridays will be dropped at the Finance Counter located on the 3rd floor of the Civic and 
Cultural Center located at 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, CA 92821.  In the event of one of 
the exclusions the receipts will be delivered the next open business day.  Daily receipts 
should be separated into sales for credit cards, cash and check.  The corresponding 
revenue should match greens and range fees, cart rentals, food and beverage and the 
pro shop.  Multiple day drops need to be separated by day. 
 
Contractor will provide a monthly detailed invoice of any sundry items and food and 
beverage sales.  The City will reimburse the Contractor the purchase price of the items 
sold.  Any inventory remaining at the term of the agreement is the Contractor’s 
responsibility. 
 
Additionally, the Contractor will provide a monthly detailed invoice of sales tax paid for 
reimbursement by the City. 
 
Contractor will provide a monthly audit of advertising expenses and any unspent 
budgeted funds will be credited to the City. 
 
The Contractor is responsible for the reassignment of the liquor license for the property.   
At the end of the term of the agreement the Contractor will reassign the license to the 
City’s designee and the Contractor will be reimbursed for the initial reassignment cost. 

 
9. LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND: Prior to commencing work hereunder, 

the Contractor shall provide a labor and materials bond in the amount of 100% of the 
contract price herein.  The payment bond shall remain in force until expiration of the 



2426626.2 7 

time within which the California Labor Commissioner may serve a civil wage and 
penalty assessment against the principal, any of its subcontractors, or both the principal 
and its subcontractors pursuant to Labor Code Section 1741, and until the expiration of 
the time within which a joint labor management committee may commence an action 
against the principal, any of its subcontractors, or both the principal and its 
subcontractors pursuant to Labor Code Section 1771.2.  The payment bond shall be 
substantially in the form of bond attached hereto as Exhibit “C“. 

 
10. CONTRACT EXTENSION NOTIFICATION:  The City shall request 

extension of this Agreement past the term, in writing, at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
end of the term hereof.  

 
11. NOTICES:  All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be deemed 

delivered to the party to whom notice is sent upon personal delivery thereof at the 
addresses set forth upon which said notice is placed, postage pre-paid, in the United 
States mail and addressed as follows: 
 
 CONTRACTOR: 
Robert Heath, CEO 
Western Golf Properties LLC 
1 Spectrum Pointe Drive, Suite 310 

 

 Lake Forest, CA 92630  
   

  C

T
Y 

CITY: 
Bill Bowlus   
City of Brea, Public Works 
Superintendent 
545 N Berry Street  
Brea, CA  92821 
 

12. SUPERVISOR DESIGNATION:  Contractor shall provide to City's Director 
of Public Works, upon execution of this Agreement, the name of the individual employed 
by Contractor who is designated as the Contractor's primary representative for the 
supervision and prosecution of the Services (“Contractor’s Representative”).  
Contractor’s Representative shall be available, upon 30 minutes notice during normal 
business hours, to respond personally or by telephone to requests for information or 
instructions concerning the Services from City's authorized representatives. 

 
13. CONTRACT PRICE ADJUSTMENT: Following expiration of the initial term 

hereof, and provided this Agreement is extended, the Base Sum per month is subject to 
a cost-of-living adjustment (Stepped Up Base).  The cost-of-living adjustment shall be 
set at the beginning of the second period adjustment date in the following manner:  The 
Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers (base year 1982-84 = 100) for the Los 
Angeles-Long Beach-Anaheim area published by the United States Department of 
Labor, Bureau of Statistics (Index) which is published for the month immediately 
preceding the adjustment date (Adjustment Index) shall be compared to the Index which 
was published for the date immediately preceding the beginning of the initial term hereof 
(Beginning Index).  If the Adjustment Index has increased over the Beginning Index, the 
monthly payment shall be increased by the amount obtained by multiplying the Base 
Sum by a fraction, the numerator of which is the Adjustment Index and the denominator 
of which is the Beginning Index. Cost of living adjustment shall not to exceed 3% 
annually.  Any increases will require City Council approval. 



2426626.2 8 

 
It is the intent of the City to provide non-potable well water to the Contractor for the 
length of the agreement. 

 
14. TERMINATION:  This Agreement may be terminated by City for any or no 

reason, upon the giving of a written "Notice of Termination" to Contractor at least sixty 
(60) days prior to the termination date specified in said notice. Contractor may terminate 
this Agreement only for cause. 

 
15. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  The Contractor is retained by the City 

only to the extent set forth in this Agreement, and the Contractor's relationship to the 
City is that of an independent contractor.  The Contractor shall be free to dispose of all 
portions of the Contractor's time and activities that the Contractor is not obligated to 
devote to the City in such a manner, and to such persons, firms or corporations, as the 
Contractor sees fit except as expressly provided in this Agreement. Neither the City nor 
any of its agents shall have control over the conduct of the Contractor or any of the 
Contractor's employees, except as set forth in this Agreement.  The Contractor shall not 
have the status of an employee under this Agreement, or be entitled to participate in 
any insurance, medical care, vacation, sick leave or other benefits provided for the 
City's officers or employees.  The Contractor shall have no power to incur any debt, 
obligation or liability on behalf of the City or otherwise act on behalf of the City as an 
agent.  The Contractor shall not, at any time, or in any manner, represent that it or any 
of its agents or employees are in any manner agents or employees of the City.  The 
Contractor shall pay all required taxes on amounts paid to the Contractor under this 
Agreement, and indemnify and hold the City harmless from any and all taxes, 
assessments, penalties and interest asserted against the City by reason of the 
independent contractor relationship created by this Agreement.  The Contractor shall 
fully comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws regarding the Contractor and 
the Contractor’s employees.  The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City harmless 
from any failure of the Contractor to comply with applicable workers’ compensation 
laws.  The City may offset against the amount of any compensation due to the 
Contractor under this Agreement any amount due to the City from the Contractor as a 
result of the Contractor’s failure to promptly pay to the City any reimbursement or 
indemnification arising under this Section. 

 
16. STANDARD OF SKILL:  The Contractor warrants that it possesses the 

professional skill and expertise necessary to perform the Services. The City relies upon 
the skill of the Contractor to do and perform the Services in a skillful, competent, and 
professional manner, and the Contractor shall perform the Services in such manner. 
The Contractor shall, at all times, meet or exceed any and all applicable professional 
standards of care.  The acceptance of the Contractor's work by the City shall not 
operate as a release of the Contractor from such standard of care. 

17. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING: Contractor shall not 
assign, transfer or convey, in whole or in part, any interest in this Agreement, nor shall 
Contractor subcontract any obligation or required performance hereunder, without the 



2426626.2 9 

City’s prior, written consent. Any attempt to assign or subcontract any interest or 
obligation herein without the City’s prior consent shall be void for all purposes. 

 
18. INTEGRATED AGREEMENT: This Agreement and all documents, 

specifications and Exhibits referenced herein, are hereby incorporated by reference as 
though forth herein. No representation or promise not expressly set forth herein, shall 
be binding or have any force or effect.  This Agreement is supplemental to, and does 
not amend or otherwise affect, the August 21, 2019 Maintenance and Operations 
Agreement executed by the parties for City’s Brea Creek Golf Course. 

 
19. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE: The provisions of this Agreement shall 

be construed under the laws of the State of California, without reference to choice of 
laws rules. Venue for any legal action shall be the Superior Court of the County of 
Orange, California. 

 
20. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence in every provision of 

this Agreement.  
 
21. ATTORNEYS' FEES: In The event that any action or proceeding is 

brought by either party to enforce any term or provision of this Agreement, the prevailing 
party shall recover its reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred with respect 
thereto. 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2426626.2 10 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed as of the respective dates set forth below. 

CONTRACTOR: 
State of California Contractor’s 
License No.  
 
_____________________________________ 
 
Date:________________________________ 

 

 
By: ________________________________________ 
         Signature                               Title  

 

 
By: ________________________________________ 
         Signature                               Title  
 
(two corporate signatures required) 
 
Contractor's Business Phone:__________________________ 
Emergency phone where Contractor can be reached at any 
time:_______________________ 

 

 
CITY OF BREA, CALIFORNIA 

 

  
By:  ______________________________  

Mayor 
 

 
 

 

 By:  ______________________________  
City Clerk 

 

 
 
Date:___________________________ 

 



2426626.2 11 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Operator responsibilities for the maintenance and operations of the 18-hole Birch Hills 
Golf Course.  Operator shall include all services for public golfing.  Such services shall 
include, but not limited to; 
 
• Provide excellent customer service  
• Maintenance of the course and driving range including any industry standard 

agronomic practice to keep it in a healthy condition 
• Compliance with NPDES 
• Compliance with State and County DPR regulations 
• Maintenance of the parking lot 
• Operation and maintenance of the clubhouse 
• Operating a pro shop 
• Scheduling tee times 
• Renting golf carts and clubs 
• Taking in green fees and golf cart rental fees 
• Rental of driving range balls 
• Regulating play 
• Enforcing golf course rules 
• Providing utilities 
• Providing golf lessons 
• Selling of food and beverage 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2426626.2 12 

EXHIBIT B 
 

CALIFORNIA LABOR CODE COMPLIANCE 
 
1. Contractor acknowledges that this contract is subject to the provisions of Division 

2, Part 7, Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 1720) of the California Labor 
Code relating to public works and the awarding public agency (“City”), and 
agrees to be bound by all the provisions thereof as though set forth in full herein.   

 
2. This is a public work and requires the payment of prevailing wages for the work 

or craft in which the worker is employed for any public work done under the 
contract by Contractor or by any subcontractor pursuant to Section 1771 of the 
Labor Code. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1773 of the Labor Code of the 
State of California, the City has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem 
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in this locality for each 
craft, classification, or type of workman needed to execute this contract from the 
Director of the Department of Industrial Relations.  These rates are on file with 
the City Clerk or may be obtained at  
http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/DPreWageDetermination.htm.   

 
 Copies may be obtained at cost at the City Clerk's office.  Contractor shall post a 

copy of such wage rates at the job site and shall pay the adopted prevailing wage 
rates as a minimum.  Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Sections 
1775, 1776, 1777.5, 1777.6, and 1813 of the Labor Code.  Pursuant to the 
provisions of 1775 of the Labor Code, Contractor shall forfeit to the City, as a 
penalty, not more than $200.00 for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for 
each laborer, worker, or mechanic employed, paid less than the stipulated 
prevailing rates for any work done under this contract, by him or by any 
subcontractor under him, in violation of the provisions of this Agreement. 

  
3. In accordance with Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1, no contractor or 

subcontractor shall be qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal, subject to 
the requirements of Section 4104 of the Public Contract Code, or engage in the 
performance of any contract for public work, unless currently registered and 
qualified to perform public work pursuant to Section 1725.5 [with limited 
exceptions for bid purposes only under Labor Code Section 1771.1(a)]. 

 
4. Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1776, Contractor shall maintain and make 

available an accurate record showing the name of each worker and hours 
worked each day and each week by each worker employed by Contractor  
performing services  covered by this Agreement.  Contractor and its 
subcontractors shall furnish electronic certified payroll records to the Labor 
Commissioner in accordance with Labor Code Section 1771.4. The project is 
subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of 
Industrial Relations. The Contractor is responsible for compliance with Section 
1776 by itself and all of its subcontractors.  This Project is subject to compliance 
monitoring and enforcement by the DIR.  The Contractor shall post job site 
notices, as prescribed by regulation. 

 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/DPreWageDetermination.htm


2426626.2 13 

5. Contractor shall comply with and be bound by the provisions of Labor Code 
Sections 1777.5, 1777.6 and 1777.7 and California Code of Regulations Title 8, 
Section 200 et seq. concerning the employment of apprentices on public works 
projects.  The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with these Sections 
for all apprenticeable occupations.  Before commencing Work on this Project, the 
Contractor shall provide the City with a copy of the information submitted to any 
applicable apprenticeship program.  Within sixty (60) Days after concluding 
Work, Contractor and each of its Subcontractors shall submit to the City a 
verified statement of the journeyman and apprentice hours performed under this 
Contract. 

 
6. Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of California Labor Code Section 

1813 concerning penalties for workers who work excess hours.  The Contractor 
shall, as a penalty to the City, forfeit twenty-five dollars ($25) for each worker 
employed in the execution of the contract by the Contractor or by any subcon-
tractor for each calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to 
work more than 8 hours in any one calendar day and 40 hours in any one 
calendar week in violation of the provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1, 
Article 3 of the California Labor Code. 

 
7. California Labor Code Sections 1860 and 3700 provide that every contractor will 

be required to secure the payment of compensation to its employees.  In 
accordance with the provisions of California Labor Code Section 1861, 
Contractor hereby certifies as follows: 

 
“I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code 
which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 
accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of 
this contract.” 

 
Date         Signature _____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 



2426626.2 14 

     EXHIBIT C 
 

        Bond No. __________ 

PAYMENT BOND 
(LABOR AND MATERIALS) 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that: 

WHEREAS the City of _____________ (“Public Agency”), State of California, has awarded to 
              
            (“Principal”) 
     (Name and address of Contractor) 

a contract (the “Contract”) for the Work described as follows: 

              
     (Project name) 

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Contract, the Principal is required before entering upon the 
performance of the Work, to file a good and sufficient payment Bond with the Public Agency to 
secure the claims to which reference is made in Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) of 
Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, we, the undersigned Principal, and        
              
              
     (Name and address of Surety) 

(“Surety”) a duly admitted surety insurer under the laws of the State of California, as Surety, are 
held and firmly bound unto the Public Agency and all contractors, subcontractors, laborers, 
material suppliers, and other persons employed in the performance of the Contract and referred 
to in Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code in the 
penal sum of              
Dollars ($     ), for materials furnished or labor thereon of any 
kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act with respect to this Work or 
labor, that the Surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding the amount hereinabove set 
forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this Bond, will pay, in addition to the face amount 
thereof, costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by 
Public Agency in successfully enforcing this obligation, to be awarded and fixed by the court, 
and to be taxed as costs and to be included in the judgment therein rendered. 

It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this Bond shall inure to the benefit of any and all 
persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under Title 3 (commencing with 
Section 9000) of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or 
their assigns in any suit brought upon this Bond. 



2426626.2 15 

Upon expiration of the time within which the California Labor Commissioner may serve a civil 
wage and penalty assessment against the principal, any of its subcontractors, or both the principal 
and its subcontractors pursuant to Labor Code Section 1741, and upon expiration of the time 
within which a joint labor management committee may commence an action against the 
principal, any of its subcontractors, or both the principal and its subcontractors pursuant to Labor 
Code Section 1771.2, if the condition of this Bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall 
become null and void; otherwise, it shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

The Surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or addition 
to the terms of the Contract or the Specifications accompanying the same shall in any manner 
affect its obligations on this Bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, 
extension, alteration, or addition. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this instrument, each of which shall 
for all purposes be deemed an original hereof, have been duly executed by Principal and Surety, 
on the date set forth below, the name of each corporate party being hereto affixed and these 
presents duly signed by its undersigned representative(s) pursuant to authority of its governing 
body. 

Dated:    
“Principal” 
 
  
 
  
 
 
By:    

Its 
 
 
By:    

Its 
 
 
 
 (Seal) 
 
 
 
 

  
“Surety” 
 
  
 
  
 
 
By:    

Its 
 
 
By:    

Its 
 
 
 
 (Seal) 

 

Note: This Bond must be executed in duplicate and dated, all signatures must be notarized, and evidence of the authority of any person 
signing as attorney-in-fact must be attached. DATE OF BOND MUST NOT BE BEFORE DATE OF CONTRACT. 
Surety companies executing Bonds must appear on the Treasury Department’s most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be 
authorized to transact business in the State where the project is located. 



  5. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/09/2020

SUBJECT: Extend Landscape Maintenance Contracts for Six Months at Various City
Facilities, the Gateway Center and in Maintenance Districts 1, 3, 5, 6 and 7

RECOMMENDATION
Authorize the City Manager to extend the current Landscape Maintenance Contracts for
an additional six months for parks mowing, City facilities, medians and greenbelts, City
reservoir sites, the Gateway Center and Maintenance Districts 1, 3, 5, 6 and 7.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
Current Landscape Maintenance and Mowing Contracts at various City facilities, the
Gateway Center and for Maintenance Districts 1, 3, 5, 6 and 7 with So Cal Land
Maintenance, Inc. and Tropical Plaza Nursery, Inc. are set to expire on June 30, 2020. A one
year extension for the Maintenance Districts was approved by City Council on July 1, 2019.
At this time, staff is requesting a six month extension to allow time to finalize a joint
Landscape Maintenance Services Request for Proposals (RFP) with the City of La Habra.
Staff anticipates being able to award new contracts from the RFP before the end of the
current calendar year.

Current six month contract prices along with a three percent requested CPI increase are
shown in the table below. The CPI for the 2019 twelve month period was 3.1% which is the
maximum increase based on our current agreement. 



Contract Current Six
Month Contract

3% CPI
Increase

New Six Month
Contract

Parks Mowing $37,919 $1,138 $39,057
Landscape Maintenance at City Facilities,
Medians, Greenbelts and Tracks $110,135 $3,304 $113,439

Landscape Maintenance at City Reservoir
Sites $8,283 $248 $8,531

Landscape Maintenance at the Gateway
Center $1,229 $37.00 $1,266

Landscape Maintenance in LLMD 1 $7,142 $214 $7,356
Landscape Maintenance in LLMD 3 $12,117 $364 $12,481
Landscape Maintenance in LLMD 5 $14,549 $437 $14,986
Landscape Maintenance in LLMD 6 $5,341 $160 $5,501
Landscape Maintenance in LLMD 7 $6,411 $192 $6,603

The Contractors have successfully completed the requirements of the contract and staff
recommends the six-month extension until the new RFP is completed.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
Staff is requesting to extend the contracts an additional six months until a joint RFP can be
finalized.

Funding is available in the following General Fund programs:
110-51-5141-4269
110-51-5143-4269
 
Funding is available in each of the District's budgets through individual assessments for the
maintenance contracts and other operational costs.  Funds 341, 343, 345, 346 and 347 will
be used.  Fund 880 wil be used for the Gateway Center.  

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Bill Bowlus, Public Works Superintendent
Concurrence:  Tony Olmos, Director of Public Works



  6. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/09/2020

SUBJECT: Consideration of First Amendment to the Communications Facility Lease
Agreement with Los Angeles Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area (SMSA)
Limited Partnership, dba Verizon Wireless at the Downtown Parking Structure

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the First Amendment to the Communications Facility Lease Agreement with Los
Angeles SMSA Limited Partnership, dba Verizon Wireless at the Downtown Parking
Structure for two additional five-year extension options.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
On December 17, 2002, the Brea Redevelopment Agency entered into a Communications
Facility Lease Agreement with Verizon Wireless to lease space for the placement of wireless
telecommunication antennas and supporting equipment. The equipment is located on top of
the elevator tower at the Downtown Parking Structure located at 101 S. Brea Boulevard. The
objective was to increase coverage and provide better cellular service in west Brea and the
surrounding area.
 
Existing Lease Terms
Pursuant to the approved agreement, Verizon Wireless agreed to pay the City a monthly rent
of $2,000 starting in December 2002 with an additional one-time payment of $15,000 at
lease signing. Commencing with the second year of the lease, and continuing every year
after that, the monthly rent amount increased by 3%. The lease had a term of ten years with
two five-year extensions and is currently in the third year of the second five-year extension.
The current lease rate is at $3,305 a month and is set to increase to $3,404 a month in
January 2021 and $3,507 in January 2022.
 
Proposal
In 2019, Los Angeles SMSA Limited Partnership, dba Verizon Wireless contacted City staff to
propose an amendment to the Communications Facility Lease. The First Amendment to this
Agreement proposes a start date of December 1, 2022, with rent picking up where it would
be at $3,612 a month with the 3% annual escalator remaining. The terms would give Verizon
Wireless two five-year extension options and include an additional one-time payment of
$7,500. In negotiating the lease, staff reviewed lease rates with 12 other public agencies in
the Southern California region and found that city leases ranged from $1,500 a month to
$3,700 a month and had an average rate of approximately $2,650 a month with 2 -
4% annual escalators. Total revenue to the City will be $43,344 per year initially (plus a 3%
growth rate). At the termination of the lease, Verizon must return the structure to its original
condition.  Verizon would not be permitted to sublet use of the site without City consent and



condition.  Verizon would not be permitted to sublet use of the site without City consent and
the right to negotiate an increase in rent accordingly.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
The amendment to the lease would generate $43,344 each year at commencement with
3% annual increases.
 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Linda Sok Tang, Management Analyst I
Concurrence: Tracy Steinkruger, Community Development Director

Attachments
A. Communications Facility Lease 
B. First Amendment to Communications Facility Lease 
C. Memorandum of First Amendment to Lease 





































































  7. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/09/2020

SUBJECT: Approve the Agreement with Fuscoe Engineering, Inc. to Provide NPDES
Stormwater Management Services 

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the Agreement with Fuscoe Engineering, Inc. for NPDES Stormwater
Management Services in the amount not-to-exceed $91,500; and

1.

Authorize the City Manager to approve up to four (4) additional one (1) year extensions
in an annual amount not-to-exceed $66,500.

2.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) program is a federally
mandated program under the Clean Water Act.  The Clean Water Act prohibits the discharge
of "pollutants" under the provisions of an NPDES permit.  The City of Brea is a co-permittee
on a regional Orange County NPDES permit along with the County of Orange and the rest of
Orange County cities.  The permit contains limits on discharging, monitoring and reporting
requirements, and other provisions to ensure that the discharge does not negatively affect
water quality.  NPDES violation fines can reach $10,000 per day in the worst case. 
 
On April 24, 2020, the City of Brea issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to qualified firms to
provide NPDES Stormwater Management Services in support of the NPDES program.  On
May 18, 2020, the City received proposals from the following two firms: Infrastructure
Engineers and Fuscoe Engineering, Inc. (Fuscoe).  Both firms met the general criteria
outlined in the RFP to provide the NPDES management services for the City.  However, staff
selected Fuscoe based on their familiarity with the Orange County permit, their expertise
working with other Orange County cities and their excellent past performance working for the
City of Brea for the last 13 years.  Fuscoe was selected based on qualifications as is
required for professional services.  For reference purposes only, Fuscoe’s proposed fee was
$37,577 lower than Infrastructure Engineers.

The detailed scope-of-work is provided in Exhibit A of the Agreement.  In summary, Fuscoe
would provide the support and guidance over the following eight (8) tasks:
  

Program Management and Development1.
Municipal Activities Program2.
New Development/Redevelopment Program3.
Construction Program4.
Existing Development Program5.



Program Effectiveness Assessment6.
Stormwater Database Management7.
Industrial / Commercial Inspections (until Environmental Services Inspector position is
filled)

8.

 
This agreement is for NPDES management services and as-needed inspection services for
FY 2020/21.  The agreement has an option to add up to an additional four (4) years based
on performance to be approved by the City Manager.  Since the upcoming renewal of the OC
NPDES Permit is expected to include additional regulations, staff strongly recommends
having Fuscoe to assist Brea with compliance.  Some of those new regulations that will have
an impact include having the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Permits (MS4) become more
regional and watershed based and the incorporation of Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs)
such as Trash, Selenium, Metals, Nutrients into the MS4 Permits.

The proposed fee for the first year of this agreement is $91,500.  This amount includes an
estimated fee of $25,000 to perform as-needed inspection services while the Brea's
Environmental Services Inspector remains vacant.  Since the position is expected to be
filled by FY 2021-22, the estimated amount is removed from years 2 through 5 as shown in
Exhibit B of the agreement. 

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
Funds are available from the NPDES account using Stormwater Fees as the funding source.
Plan checking services related to private development would be paid through the Cost
Center funded by private developers. There is no General Fund impact. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:   Brian M. Ingallinera, Environmental Services Coordinator
Concurrence:  Rudy Correa, Interim Water Superintendent
                        Tony Olmos, P.E., Public Works Director
 

Attachments
Agreement 





















































  8. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/09/2020

SUBJECT: 3rd Floor Remodel - COVID-19 Update - Verbal Update: Jenn Colacion



  9. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 06/09/2020

SUBJECT: Fire Services - FY 2020-21 Budget Decision Package Review - Verbal Update 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED


	Agenda
	Approval of Action Minutes for May 26, 2020 Meeting
	Att1_05-26-2020 Minutes
	Professional Services Agreement with HF&H Consultants, LLC for Solid Waste SB 1383 Contracting Assistance in the Amount Not-to-Exceed $30,000
	Att1_Exhibit A - Proposal
	Background
	Scope of Work
	C. Contract Negotiations with Republic
	Task 3:  Negotiate Rates, Terms and Conditions of Desired Services
	Republic OC Cities Scope of Work for SB 1383 5-13-2020.pdf
	Work plan


	Att2_Agreement
	Interim Contract with Western Golf Properties (WGP) for Birch Hills Golf Course and Funding for Maintenance, Operations and Other Related Costs
	Att1_Interim Contract - WGP
	Extend Landscape Maintenance Contracts for Six Months at Various City Facilities, the Gateway Center and in Maintenance Districts 1, 3, 5, 6 and 7
	First Amendment to Communications Facility Lease Agreement with LA SMSA Limited Partnership, dba Verizon Wireless at Downtown Parking Structure
	Att1_A. Communications Facility Lease
	Att2_B. First Amendment to Communications Facility Lease
	Att3_C. Memorandum of First Amendment to Lease
	Approve the Agreement with Fuscoe Engineering, Inc. to Provide NPDES Stormwater Management Services
	Att1_Agreement
	3rd Floor Remodel - COVID-19 Update - Verbal Update_ Jenn Colacion
	Fire Services - FY 2020-21 Budget Decision Package Review - Verbal Update

